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July 20, 2022
Brian P. Boyd
. rincipal
The Honorable Lisa R. Barton ggoydp@ﬁ,mm
Secretary to the Commission 404724 2845 direct
U.S. International Trade Commission
500 E Street, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20436
Re: Certain Soft Projectile Launching Devices, Components Thereof, Ammunition, and

Products Containing Same; Inv. No. 337-TA-
Dear Secretary Barton:

Hasbro, Inc. and Spin Master, Inc. (collectively, “Complainants”) respectfully request
that the Commission institute an investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930,
as amended, concerning certain soft projectile launching devices, components thereof,
ammunition, and products containing same. In accordance with the Commission’s Temporary
Change to Filing Procedures dated March 16, 2020, please find enclosed the documents in
support of Complainants’ request, including the following:

1. One (1) electronic copy of Complainants’ Verified Complaint; pursuant to Commission
Rules 210.8(a)(1)(i) and 210.12(a);

2. One (1) electronic copy of Complainants’ letter and certification requesting confidential
treatment of Exhibits 5, 6, 9A-9B, and 10A-10B, pursuant to Commission Rules 210.5(d)
and 201.6(b);

3. One (1) electronic copy of Complainants’ Statement on the Public Interest, pursuant to
Commission Rules 210.8(b);

4. One (1) electronic copy of the public exhibits to the Complaint, pursuant to Commission
Rule 210.8(a)(1)(i), including:

e One (1) electronic copy of the certified versions of U.S. Patent No. 8,371,282 and
U.S. Patent No. 8,640,683 (the “Asserted Patents”) listed as Exhibits 1 through 2
to the Complaint;

e One (1) electronic copy of certified assignment records for the Asserted Patents,
listed as Exhibits 3 through 4 to the Complaint.
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5. One (1) electronic copy of the confidential exhibits to the Complaint, pursuant to
Commission Rule 210.8(a)(1)(ii);

6. One (1) electronic copy of the certified prosecution histories for each of the Asserted
Patents, included as Appendices A and B to the Complaint, pursuant to Commission Rule
210.12(c)(1); and

7. One (1) copy of each of the patents and applicable pages of each technical reference
identified in the respective prosecution histories of the Asserted Patents, included as
Appendices C and D, pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(¢c)(2).

Complainants confirm that they will serve copies of the non-confidential versions of the
Complaint and all associated exhibits and appendices upon the institution of this investigation on
the proposed respondents consistent with 19 C.F.R. Part 201 (including 19 C.F.R. § 201.16) and
the Commission’s Temporary Change to Filing Procedures.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions.

Singerely,

Brian Boyd
Encl.
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) 404 892 5002 fax
The Honorable Lisa R. Barton

Acting Secretary

U.S. International Trade Commission E’.ia’? Pl- Boyd

500 E. Street, S.W. Bgz;%ﬁmm
Washington, D.C. 20436 404724 2845 direct

Re: Certain Soft Projectile Launching Devices, Components Thereof, Ammunition, and

Products Containing Same; Inv. No. 337-TA-
Dear Secretary Barton:

In accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 201.6(b) and 210.5, Complainants Hasbro, Inc.
(“Hasbro”) and Spin Master, Inc. (“Spin Master”) (collectively, “Complainants™) respectfully

request confidential treatment of the business information contained in Confidential Exhibits 5,
6, 9A-9B, and 10A-10B to the Verified Complaint.

The information in these documents is proprietary commercial information not otherwise
publicly available. Specifically, the Verified Complaint contains confidential details regarding
Hasbro’s internal product development and business plans; Confidential Exhibits 5 and 6 contain
detailed confidential information regarding Hasbro’s business plans and its financial
investments, expenditures, and licensing of the asserted patents; and Confidential Exhibits 9A-
9B and 10A-10B contain confidential technical details of the design of Hasbro’s domestic
industry products, as well as related product literature, which are not public as of the date of this
letter.

The information described above qualifies as confidential business information pursuant
to 19 C.F.R. § 201.6(a) because:

1. Itis not publicly available;

2. The unauthorized disclosure of such information could cause substantial harm to the
competitive position of Complainants;

3. The disclosure of such information could impair the Commission’s ability to obtain
information necessary to perform it statutory function.

Please contact me if you have any questions about this request, or if this request is not
granted in full.
Respectfully submitted,

Brian Boyd
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CERTIFICATION

I, Brian Boyd, counsel for Complainant Hasbro, Inc., declare:

1. | am duly authorized by Hasbro, Inc. to execute this certification.

2. | have reviewed the Confidential Complaint and Confidential Exhibits 5, 6, 9A-
9B, and 10A-10B for which confidential treatment has been requested.

3. To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, formed after reasonable
inquiry, substantially-identical information is not available to the public.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregoing is

true and correct.

Executed this 20" day of July, 2022. MQ

Brian P. Boyd
Atlanta, GA




UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of

CERTAIN SOFT PROJECTILE
LAUNCHING DEVICES, COMPONENTS Inv. No. 337-TA-__
THEREOF, AMMUNITION, AND

PRODUCTS CONTAINING SAME

COMPLAINANTS’ STATEMENT REGARDING THE PUBLIC INTEREST

In support of their Complaint entitled Certain Soft Projectile Launching Devices,
Components Thereof, Ammunition, and Products Containing Same, Complaints Hasbro, Inc.
(“Hasbro”) and Spin Master, Inc. (“Spin Master”) (collectively, “Complainants”) respectfully
submit this statement regarding the public interest, as required by Commission Rule 210.8(b).

This proceeding concerns the importation, sale for importation, and/or sale after
importation into the United States of certain soft projectile launching devices, components thereof,
ammunition, and products containing same that infringe United States Patent Nos. 8,640,683 and
8,371,282 (collectively, the “Asserted Patents”). Specifically, Complainants seek a permanent
limited exclusion order, pursuant to Section 337(d), excluding from entry into the United States
the proposed respondents’! accused products (identified in the Complaint) that infringe one or
more claims of the Asserted Patents. Complainants also seek permanent cease and desist orders
covering the accused products and a bond upon respondents’ importation of infringing products
during the presidential review period.

Issuance of the requested remedial orders will provide relief in the face of widespread and

ongoing importation into the United States, sale for importation, and sale within the United States

I See the Complaint for the full list of proposed respondents.
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after importation of products that infringe the Asserted Patents. In this case, the requested remedial
orders would not have an adverse effect on the public health and welfare, competitive conditions
in the United States economy, the production of like or directly competitive articles in the United
States, or United States consumers. Protecting Complainants’ intellectual property rights and
domestic industry through the requested remedial orders will serve the public interest while having
little or no adverse effect on the public interest.
L THE REQUESTED REMEDIAL ORDERS ARE IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST
The Commission has long recognized the strong public interest in enforcing intellectual
property rights. See Certain Baseband Processor Chips and Chipsets, Transmitter and Receiver
(Radio) Chips, Power Control Chips, and Products Containing Same, Including Cellular
Telephone Handsets, Inv. No. 337-TA-543, USITC Pub. 4258, at 136-37 (Oct. 2011). In this case,
the requested remedial orders are in the public interest for the following reasons: (1) exclusion of
the accused products will not have an adverse effect on the public health or welfare;
(2) the requested remedial orders will not result in any void in the market; and (3) the requested
remedial orders will not adversely affect United States consumers.

1) Explanation of how the articles potentially subject to the orders are used in
the United States

The accused products are generally projectile launching devices, i.e., “blasters” that are
designed to launch soft, spherical ammunition made from hydrated super absorbent polymers
(SAP). They are used for recreation and entertainment purposes, by users who use the projectile
launchers to launch the ammunition at a target. The ammunition is soft and is designed to break
apart upon impact. The accused products are manufactured outside the United States, imported
into the United States, and sold within the United States after importation via various outlets

including online retailers and wholesalers.



2) Identification of any public health, safety, or welfare concerns relating to the
requested remedial orders

There are no health, safety, or welfare concerns at issue in this Investigation. The accused
products are not used to treat any medical condition as in Certain Fluidized Supporting Apparatus
and Components Thereof, Inv. No. 337-TA-182/188 (specialized hospital beds for burn patients),
nor are they used to improve an important national health, safety or welfare interest as in Certain
Inclined Field Acceleration Tubes, Inv. No. 337-TA-67 (basic atomic research) or Certain
Automatic Crankpin Grinders, Inv. No. 337-TA-60 (fuel economy standards). In general, potential
concerns about a proposed remedy having a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare
have arisen in investigations involving pharmaceuticals, medical equipment, or green technology
products, such as hybrid cars or solar panels. The accused products recommended for exclusion
are intended for recreation and entertainment purposes, and their exclusion does not implicate
public health, safety, or welfare concerns.

A3 Identification of like or directly competitive articles that Complainants, their

licensees, or third parties make that would replace the subject articles if they
were to be excluded

Hasbro will manufacture and distribute like and directly competitive models of soft
projectile launching devices and ammunition, including its NERF “Pro GelFire” blasters that are
designed to launch hydrated SAP ammunition. As detailed in the Complaint and supporting
documents thereto, preorders for the NERF Pro GelFire Mythic Blaster began in July 2022, and
Hasbro plans for the products to be available on shelves by November 2022. Thus, even if the
accused products at issue in this investigation were excluded, consumers would still have products

from which to choose.



“) Indication of whether the Complainants, their licensees, or third parties have
the capacity to replace the volume of articles subject to the recommended
remedial orders in a commercially reasonable time in the United States

Hasbro has the capacity to replace the proposed respondents’ U.S. sales of soft projectile
launching devices and ammunition in a commercially reasonable time. Hasbro is a well-known
global play and entertainment company with established supply chains and a long history of
manufacturing “blaster” products at scale. If the Accused Products were excluded from the United
States, Hasbro would have the capacity to replace their volume of accused products to the U.S.
market within a commercially reasonable time.

) How the requested remedial orders would impact consumers

As explained above, exclusion of the proposed respondents’ soft projectile launching
devices and ammunition, whether by limited exclusion order and/or cease and desist order, would
not adversely affect consumers in the United States in view of Hasbro’s sales of NERF “Pro
GelFire” products within the United States. Accordingly, there will be minimal, if any, impact to
the public interest by the exclusion of the proposed respondents’ infringing products.

II. CONCLUSION

If the Commission grants the requested remedial orders, the public interest will be served.
The accused products are not necessary to any health or welfare need, and an adequate supply of
substitute devices will be available through Hasbro Inc. As such, the strong public interest in
protecting Complainants’ valid intellectual property rights outweighs any potential adverse impact

on the public interest.

Respectfully submitted,

FISH & RICHARDSON P.C.
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l. INTRODUCTION

1. Complainants Hasbro, Inc. (“Hasbro”) and Spin Master, Inc. (“Spin Master”)
(collectively, “Complainants”) request that the United States International Trade Commission
commence an investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19
U.S.C. § 1337 (“Section 337”), to remedy the unlawful importation into the United States, sale for
importation into the United States, and/or sale within the United States after importation, of certain
soft projectile launching devices, components thereof, ammunition, and products containing same,
whether new or refurbished, (collectively referred to as “Accused Products”) that infringe valid
and enforceable United States patents owned and exclusively licensed by Complainants.t

2. The proposed Respondents are Gel Blaster, Inc., Shenzhen Yi Jin Electronics
Science (a/k/a “Shenzhen Yi Jin Electronics” and/or “Yi Jin Electronics Science”), Guangdong Yu
Lee Technology Corporation, and Yu Lee Company Ltd. (collectively, the “Gel Blaster
Respondents™); Splat-R-Ball, LLC, Daisy Manufacturing Company (d/b/a “Daisy Outdoor
Products”), and S-Beam Precision Products Ltd. (collectively, the “Splat-R-Ball Respondents”);
and Prime Time Toys LLC, Prime Time Toys Ltd., and Easebon Services Ltd. (collectively, the
“PTT Respondents”) (the Gel Blaster Respondents, Splat-R-Ball Respondents, and PTT
Respondents collectively as “Respondents”). Respondents have engaged in unfair acts in violation
of Section 337 through and in connection with the unlicensed importation into the United States,
sale for importation into the United States, and/or sale within the United States after importation

of Accused Products that infringe one or more claims of United States Patent No. 8,371,282

! Complainants understand that the Commission is currently closed to the public and, thus, that the
Commission is not currently accepting physical samples in connection with Section 337
complaints. Complainants plan to submit physical samples of the Domestic Industry Products and
Accused Products when the Commission reopens to the public.

1



(“the *282 Patent™) and United States Patent No. 8,640,683 (“the 683 Patent”). The *282 and *683
Patents are collectively referred to herein as “the Asserted Patents.”

3. Complainants assert that Respondents directly infringe, contributorily infringe,
and/or induce the infringement of at least the following claims of the Asserted Patents (collectively,

“the Asserted Claims™) with independent claims in bold:

U.S. Patent No. Asserted Claims
8,371,282 1-15, 17-21
8,640,683 1-6, 10-15

4. As required by Section 337(a)(2) and defined by Section 337(a)(3), an industry in
the United States exists and/or is in the process of being established relating to articles protected
by the Asserted Patents. Complainant Hasbro has developed
NERF Pro GelFire | rractice the Asserted Patents. Preorders of Hasbro’s NERF Pro
GelFire Mythic Blaster (through Hasbro Pulse and major retailers, including Target and Amazon)

began in July 2022. See Confidential Exhibit 6 (Declaration of Adam Kleinman). Hasbro plans
for the product to be available on shelves by November 2022. Id.

5. Complainants seek a permanent limited exclusion order, pursuant to Section 337(d),
excluding from entry into the United States all of Respondents’ Accused Products that infringe
one or more claims of the Asserted Patents. Complainants also seek permanent cease and desist
orders, pursuant to Section 337(f), directing Respondents to cease and desist from activities
including, but not limited to, importing, marketing, advertising, demonstrating, warehousing

inventory for distribution, offering for sale, selling, distributing, or using such Accused Products



in the United States. Complainants also seek the imposition of a bond if Respondents continue to
import infringing articles during the 60-day Presidential review period, pursuant to Section 337(j).

6. Founded nearly 100 years ago in 1923, Hasbro is a global play and entertainment
company committed to Creating the World’s Best Play and Entertainment Experiences and its
purpose of making the world a better place for all children, fans and families. Hasbro delivers
immersive brand experiences for global audiences through consumer products, including toys and
games. Hasbro markets and sells toys and games based on its owned and controlled brands
globally at retail stores, through e-commerce platforms and through its fan-based direct-to-
consumer platform, Hasbro PULSE.

7. Hasbro’s toys and games include action figures, arts and crafts and creative play
products, fashion and other dolls, play sets, preschool toys, plush products, sports action blasters
and accessories, vehicles and toy-related specialty products, games and many other consumer
products, which represent an array of internationally recognizable brands that capture the
imagination of our consumers worldwide. Hasbro's iconic brands include NERF, MAGIC: THE
GATHERING, MY LITTLE PONY, TRANSFORMERS, PLAY-DOH, MONOPOLY, BABY
ALIVE, DUNGEONS & DRAGONS, POWER RANGERS, PEPPA PIG and PJ MASKS, as well
as premier partner brands.

8. Spin Master was founded in 1994 by childhood friends, Ronnen Harary and Anton
Rabie. Spin Master has grown significantly since its inception, transforming from a small, single
product operation into a leading global children’s entertainment company with a diverse portfolio
of innovative toys, entertainment franchises and digital games. Spin Master is the owner of award-
winning brands that entertain and inspire children and families, such as PAW Patrol, Bakugan,

Hatchimals, Kinetic Sand, and Air Hogs.



9. Spin Master is the owner of the Asserted Patents, see Exhibits 3-4, and Hasbro is
the exclusive licensee of the Asserted Patents, see Confidential Exhibit 5.

10.  As described herein and in the attached declaration, a domestic industry, under
subparts (A), (B), and/or (C) of Section 337(a)(3), exists and/or is in the process of being
established by virtue of Complainants’ significant U.S. investment in plant and equipment,
significant employment of U.S. labor and capital, and substantial investment in U.S. exploitation
of the Asserted Patents, including through engineering, research and development, and other
activities designed to exploit the patented technology.

. THE PARTIES

A. Complainants

11. Hasbro is a Rhode Island corporation with a principal place of business at 1027
Newport Avenue, Pawtucket, Rhode Island 02861. Hasbro is a global leader in play and
entertainment products.

12.  Spin Master is a Delaware corporation with a principal place of business at 5880
W. Jefferson Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90016. Spin Master is a global children’s entertainment
company with a diverse portfolio of innovative toys, entertainment franchises and digital games.

B. Proposed Respondents?

1. The Gel Blaster Respondents

13.  Oninformation and belief, proposed respondents Gel Blaster, Inc., Shenzhen Yi Jin

Electronics Science (a/k/a “Shenzhen Yi Jin Electronics” and/or “Yi Jin Electronics Science”),

2 The proposed Respondents named herein are based on public information currently available to
Respondents regarding the entities involved in the sale for importation into the United States,
importation into the United States, and/or sale within the United States after importation of the
Accused Products. To the extent Complainants obtain additional information revealing additional
potential respondents, including for example through the course of discovery, Complainants
reserve the right to request that these entities be added as respondents.



Guangdong Yu Lee Technology Corporation (a/k/a “Guangdong Yu Lee Technology” and/or
“Guang Dong Yu Lee Technology Corporation”), and Yu Lee Company Ltd. (collectively, the
“Gel Blaster Respondents™) sell for importation into the United States, import, and/or sell within
the United States after importation products that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted
Patents. See Section V (Specific Instances of Unfair Important and Sale), infra.

14.  On information and belief, Gel Blaster, Inc. (f/k/a “Gel Blaster LLC”) is a Texas
corporation with its principal place of business at 5000 Plaza on the Lake, Suite 265, Austin, Texas,
78746. Exhibit 11 (Gel Blaster Certificate of Conversion) at 5, 7(c). Gel Blaster, Inc. was
formerly known as Gel Blaster LLC. Gel Blaster LLC converted to Gel Blaster, Inc. on April 1,
2022. Id. at 1 6. On information and belief, Gel Blaster, Inc. imports and sells within the United
States after importation Gel Blaster Accused Products (defined in | 47, infra). See Section V
(Specific Instances of Unfair Important and Sale), infra.

15.  On information and belief, Shenzhen Yi Jin Electronics Science (a/k/a “Shenzhen
Yi Jin Electronics” and/or “Yi Jin Electronics Science”) is a Chinese corporation with its principal
place of business at 101-501, Building 10, Dawang Industrial Park, No. 66, Xin Xia Road, Shan
Xia Community, Longgang District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, China. Exhibit 12
(Panjiva Supply Chain Data). On information and belief, Shenzhen Yi Jin Electronics Science
sells for importation and/or ships Gel Blaster Accused Products into the United States. See Section
V (Specific Instances of Unfair Important and Sale), infra.

16. On information and belief, Guangdong Yu Lee Technology Corporation (a/k/a
“Guangdong Yu Lee Technology” and/or “Guang Dong Yu Lee Technology Corporation™) is a
Chinese corporation with its principal place of business at No 357 Qingfeng Rd, QingXi Town,

Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, China. Exhibit 13 (Panjiva Supply Chain Data). On



information and belief, Guangdong Yu Lee Technology Corporation sells for importation and/or
ships Gel Blaster Accused Products into the United States. See Section V (Specific Instances of
Unfair Important and Sale), infra.

17.  Oninformation and belief, Yu Lee Company Ltd. is a Hong Kong corporation with
its principal place of business at 1801-5, 18/F., King Palace Plaza, 52A Sha Tsui Rd, Tsuen Wan,
N.T. Hong Kong. Exhibit 14 (Panjiva Supply Chain Data); Exhibit 15 (Yu Lee Website Contact
Info). On information and belief, Yu Lee Company Ltd. sells for importation and/or ships Gel
Blaster Accused Products into the United States. See Section V (Specific Instances of Unfair
Important and Sale), infra.

2. The Splat-R-Ball Respondents

18.  On information and belief, proposed respondents Splat-R-Ball, LLC, Daisy
Manufacturing Company (d/b/a “Daisy Outdoor Products™), and S-Beam Precision Products Ltd.
(collectively, the “Splat-R-Ball Respondents™) sell for importation into the United States, import,
and/or sell within the United States after importation products that infringe one or more claims of
the Asserted Patents. See Section V (Specific Instances of Unfair Important and Sale), infra.

19.  On information and belief, Splat-R-Ball, LLC is a Delaware limited liability
company with its principal place of business at 1700 N 2nd St., Rogers, Arkansas, 72756. Exhibit
16 (Splat-R-Ball LLC Corporate Information); Exhibit 17 (Splat-R-Ball Website Contact
Information) at 7. On information and belief, Splat-R-Ball, LLC imports and sells within the
United States after importation SplatRBall Accused Products (defined in § 57, infra). See Section
V (Specific Instances of Unfair Important and Sale), infra.

20.  On information and belief, Daisy Manufacturing Company is an Arkansas
corporation with its principal place of business at 1700 N 2nd St., Rogers, Arkansas, 72756.

Exhibit 18 (Daisy Manufacturing Company Corporate Information). On information and belief,



“Daisy Outdoor Products” is a fictitious name under which Daisy Manufacturing Company
conducts business. Id. On information and belief, Daisy Manufacturing Company (d/b/a “Daisy
Outdoor Products”) imports SplatRBall Accused Products and is involved with their sale after
importation. See Section V (Specific Instances of Unfair Important and Sale), infra.

21.  Oninformation and belief, S-Beam Precision Products Ltd. is a Chinese corporation
with its principal place of business at Building D & E, Dongcheng Industrial Park, Xinping 2nd
Road, Mingzhong Town, Zhongshan City, Guangdong Province, China and/or No. 6-1 Lane 151
Sec.2 Chien Kuon Rd, Taipei, Taiwan. Exhibit 19 (S-Beam Precision Products Ltd. Website);
Exhibit 20 (Panjiva Supply Chain Data Taiwan); Exhibit 21 (Panjiva Supply Chain Data China)
On information and belief, S-Beam Precision Products Ltd. sells for importation and/or ships
SplatRBall Accused Products into the United States. See Section V (Specific Instances of Unfair
Important and Sale), infra.

3. The Prime Time Toys (“PTT”) Respondents

22. On information and belief, proposed respondents Prime Time Toys LLC, Prime
Time Toys Ltd., Easebon Services Ltd. (collectively, the “PTT Respondents™) sell for importation
into the United States, import, and/or sell within the United States after importation products that
infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents. See Section V (Specific Instances of Unfair
Important and Sale), infra.

23.  Oninformation and belief, Prime Time Toys LLC is a New Jersey corporation with
its principal place of business at 200 Wanaque Ave, Suite 101, Pompton Lakes, New Jersey 07442.
Exhibit 22 (Prime Time Toys Corporate Information); Exhibit 23 (Panjiva Supply Chain Data).
On information and belief, Prime Time Toys LLC imports and sells within the United States after
importation PTT Accused Products (defined in § 68, infra). See Section V (Specific Instances of

Unfair Important and Sale), infra.



24.  Oninformation and belief, Prime Time Toys Ltd. is a Hong Kong corporation with
its principal place of business at Suite 5 2/F Kwong Sang Hong Centre, 151-153 Hoi Bun Rd,
Kwun Tong, Hong Kong SAR. Exhibit 24 (Panjiva Supply Chain Data). On information and
belief, Prime Time Toys Ltd. sells for importation and/or ships PTT Accused Products into the
United States. See Section V (Specific Instances of Unfair Important and Sale), infra.

25.  Oninformation and belief, Easebon Services Ltd. is a Hong Kong corporation with
the same principal place of business (Suite 5 2/F Kwong Sang Hong Centre, 151-153 Hoi Bun Rd,
Kwun Tong, Hong Kong SAR) as Prime Time Toys Ltd. Exhibit 25 (HYDRO STRIKE
Trademark Record); Exhibit 26 (PRIME TIME INTERNATIONAL Trademark Record); Exhibit
27 (Product Packaging of PTT Accused Products showing address “Suite 5 2/F Kwong Sang Hong
Centre, 151-153 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong”). On information and belief, Easebon
Services Ltd. is involved with the importation and/or sale for importation of PTT Accused Products
into the United States. See Section V (Specific Instances of Unfair Important and Sale), infra.

1.  TECHNOLOGY AND PRODUCTS AT ISSUE

26.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.10(b)(1) & 210.12(a)(12), the Accused Products
are projectile launchers designed to launch ammunition made of a hydrated super absorbent
polymer (SAP) material, components of such projectile launchers, SAP ammunition for use in
connection with such projectile launchers, and products containing same (such as kits with the
projectile launchers, ammunition, and other accessories such as goggles). These Accused Products,
without permission, implement Complainants’ technologies as described and claimed in the
Asserted Patents.

27.  As described below with respect the Asserted Patents, the patented technology at
issue generally relates to projectile launching devices (e.g., “blasters” used for recreation and

entertainment purposes) that are designed to launch soft, spherical ammunition made from



hydrated super absorbent polymer (SAP) materials. SAPs are polymers that can absorb an
extremely large amount of water relative to their own mass. According to the Asserted Patents,
properly designed SAPs are more suitable ammunition in projectile launching devices and have
many advantages as compared to projectiles for gaming projectile launching devices that were
previously known, such as paint balls, plastics, and foams.

IV. THE ASSERTED PATENTS AND NON-TECHNICAL DESCRIPTIONS?

A. U.S. Patent No. 8,371,282

1. Identification of the Patent and Ownership

28. U.S. Patent No. 8,371,282 (“the *282 patent”) is entitled “Soft-Projectile Launching
Device.” The named inventors of the *282 patent are Keith G. Meggs, Ronald Brawer, Michael
G. Hoeting, and Neil Hamilton. The *282 patent duly and legally issued on February 12, 2013.
The ’282 patent issued from and has priority to U.S. Patent Application Serial No. 12/777,134,
filed on May 10, 2010. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(i), a certified copy of the *282
patent is attached as Exhibit 1. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(xi), Complainants state
that the *282 patent will expire July 13, 2030. The 282 patent is directed to a device for projecting
a soft-projectile made from a super absorbent polymer.

29.  Spin Master, Inc. is the current valid assignee of the ’282 patent. Pursuant to
Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(ii), Exhibit 3 contains a certified copy of each assignment of

the 282 patent. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(iv), Complainants state that Hasbro,

% The contents of this Complaint, including the non-technical descriptions of the Asserted Patents
are presented to give general backgrounds of the inventions. Such statements are not intended to
be used, nor should be used, for purposes of patent claim interpretation. Complainants present
these statements subject to, and without waiver of, its right to argue that claim terms should be
construed in a particular way, as contemplated by claim interpretation jurisprudence and the
relevant evidence.



Inc. is the exclusive licensee of the *282 patent and a copy of the license agreement is Confidential
Exhibit 5.

30.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(c), a certified copy of the prosecution history
of the ’282 patent is submitted herewith as Appendix A. Copies of each technical reference
mentioned in the prosecution history of the *282 patent are submitted herewith as Appendix C.

2. Non-Technical Description of the Patented Invention

31. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(vi), the *282 patent is generally directed
to ammunition for a projectile launching device that is made from hydrated super absorbent
polymers (SAP). SAPs are polymers that can absorb an extremely large amount of water relative
to their own mass. The 282 patent describes that properly designed SAPs would be a more
suitable ammunition in projectile launching devices (e.g., to improve conventional NERF®
“blasters” as discussed in the patent) and had many advantages as compared to projectiles for
gaming projectile launching devices that were previously known, such as paint balls, plastics, and
foams.

32.  Asone example, the *282 patent describes the safety benefits of SAP ammunition
as compared to paint balls and plastics (e.g., as found in “airsoft” guns). For example, the *282
patent describes that certain SAP projectiles had beneficial characteristics for use in a projectile
launcher used for gaming, in part because SAPs break down at different pressures based on their
composition. In one claimed improvement, hydrated SAP projectiles have sufficient cross-linking
density such that they are projected from a projectile launching device without breaking apart. At
the same time, because hydrated SAP projectiles rupture when subjected to excessive pressure—
such as when impacting a target after being launched from a projectile launcher—the force at
impact is spread over a much wider surface area, thus reducing the likelihood of injury when the

target is a person. See, e.g., Exhibit 1 at 3:45-4:17.
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33.  The 282 patent is related to the asserted divisional 683 patent discussed below.

3. Foreign Counterparts to the 282 Patent

34. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(v), the following table lists all foreign

counterpart patents and applications for the 282 patent that have been filed, issued, abandoned, or

withdrawn:
Country App. No. Filing Date Status Patent / Issue Date
Code Publication
No.
DE 202011110351 05/09/2011 Expired 202011110351 | 08/03/2013
Ul

WO PCT/US2011/035801 | 05/09/2011 Expired 2011143138A2 -
WO PCT/US2011/035801 | 05/09/2011 Expired 2011143138A3 -
WO PCT/US2011/066307 | 12/20/2011 Expired 2012088188A1 -
EP 2011781099 05/09/2011 | Withdrawn 2569588A2 -
EP 2011850884 12/20/2011 | Withdrawn 2569588A1 -

35. No other foreign patents or patent applications corresponding to the 282 patent
have been filed, abandoned, withdrawn, or rejected.
B. U.S. Patent No. 8,640,683

1. Identification of the Patent and Ownership

36. U.S. Patent No. 8,640,683 (“the 683 patent”) is entitled “Soft-Projectile Launching
Device.” The named inventors of the *683 patent are Keith G. Meggs, Ronald Brawer, Michael
G. Hoeting, and Neil Hamilton. The ’683 patent duly and legally issued on February 4, 2014.
The 683 patent issued from U.S. Patent Application Serial No. 13/761,082 and claims priority to
U.S. Patent Application Serial No. 12/777,134, filed on May 10, 2010. Pursuant to Commission
Rule 210.12(a)(9)(i), a certified copy of the *683 patent is attached as Exhibit 2. Pursuant to
Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(xi), Complainants state that the 683 patent will expire May 10,
2030. The 683 patent is directed to a device for projecting a soft-projectile made from a super

absorbent polymer.
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37.  Spin Master, Inc. is the current valid assignee of the 683 patent. Pursuant to
Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(ii), Exhibits 4 & 3A-3E (parent) contain a certified copy of each
assignment of the 683 patent. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(iv), Complainants state
that Hasbro, Inc. is the exclusive licensee of the 683 patent and a copy of the license agreement
is Confidential Exhibit 5.

38.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(c), a certified copy of the prosecution history
of the 683 patent is submitted herewith as Appendix B. Copies of each technical reference
mentioned in the prosecution history of the *683 patent are submitted herewith as Appendix D.

2. Non-Technical Description of the Patented Invention

39.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(vi), the *683 patent is generally directed
to a projectile launching system including ammunition made from a hydrated super absorbent
polymer (SAP).

40. The *683 patent is a division of the application that led to the issued *282 patent
described above and shares the same specification as the *282 patent described above.

41.  Asnoted in the *282 patent description above, SAPS are polymers that can absorb
an extremely large amount of water relative to their own mass. The 683 patent describes that
SAPs would be a more suitable ammunition in projectile launching devices (e.g., to improve
conventional NERF® “blasters” as discussed in the patent) and had many advantages as compared
to projectiles for gaming projectile launching devices that were previously known, such as paint
balls, plastics, and foams.

42.  Asone example, the 683 patent describes the safety benefits of SAP ammunition
as compared to paint balls and plastics (e.g., as found in “airsoft” guns). For example, the 683
patent describes that certain SAP projectiles had beneficial characteristics for use in a projectile

launcher used for gaming, in part because SAPs break down at different pressures based on their
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composition. In one claimed improvement, hydrated SAP projectiles have sufficient cross-linking
density such that they are projected from a projectile launching device without breaking apart. At
the same time, because hydrated SAP projectiles rupture when subjected to excessive pressure—
such as when impacting a target after being launched from a projectile launcher—the force at
impact is spread over a much wider surface area, thus reducing the likelihood of injury when the
target is a person. See, e.g., Exhibit 2 at 3:54-4:27.

3. Foreign Counterparts to the ’683 Patent

43.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(v), the following table lists all foreign

counterpart patents and applications for the 683 patent that have been filed, issued, abandoned, or

withdrawn:
Country App. No. Filing Date Status Patent/ Issue Date
Code Publication
No.
DE 202011110351 05/09/2011 Expired 202011110351 | 08/03/2013
Ul

WO PCT/US2011/035801 | 05/09/2011 Expired 2011143138A2 -
WO PCT/US2011/035801 | 05/09/2011 Expired 2011143138A3 -
WO PCT/US2011/066307 | 12/20/2011 Expired 2012088188A1 -
EP 2011781099 05/09/2011 | Withdrawn 2569588A2 -
EP 2011850884 12/20/2011 | Withdrawn 2569588A1 -

44, No other foreign patents or patent applications corresponding to the 683 patent
have been filed, abandoned, withdrawn, or rejected.

V. SPECIFIC INSTANCES OF UNFAIR IMPORTATION AND SALE

45.  Oninformation and belief, Respondents have imported into the United States, sold
for importation into the United States and/or sold within the United States after importation
Accused Products. Through their own purchase and analysis of representative samples of Accused

Products, as well as investigation of public importation records, Complainants have obtained

13



information evidencing the sale for importation, importation, and/or sale after importation in the
United States of infringing Accused Products by each proposed Respondent.

46.  On information and belief, all Accused Products are manufactured outside of the
United States and are sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United States,
and/or sold in the United States after importation. Specific instances of the sale for importation,
importation, and sale in the United States after importation of the Accused Products are set forth
below, and are representative, non-limiting examples of unlawful importations and/or sales of
Accused Products after importation that infringe the Asserted Patents.

1. The Gel Blaster Respondents

47. Complainants purchased representative samples of the Gel Blaster Respondents’
Gel Blaster SURGE Water-Based Gellet Blaster and Gel Blaster STARFIRE Water-Based Gel
Bead Blaster and additional ammunition (collectively the “Gel Blaster Accused Products”) in the
United States via Amazon.com and Walmart.com. Exhibits 32A-32C (Proof of purchase of Gel
Blaster Accused Products).

48.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(x), Exhibits 7A-7B & 8A-8B show a
series of photographs of the Gel Blaster Accused Products in the course of charting how the Gel
Blaster Accused Products infringe exemplary claims of the Asserted Patents.

49.  On information and belief, the Gel Blaster Accused Products sold in the United
States are manufactured in China and imported into the United States. For example, the packaging
for each of the Gel Blaster Accused Products that Complainants purchased in the United States is

marked “Made in China” and “Assembled in China” as shown here:
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GBS001
MADE IN CHINA

“Gel Blaster SURGE” packaging (red callout box added)

GEL BLASTER * 5000 PLAZA ON THE LAKE « AUSTIN, TX 78746 * 844-GELLETS

A WARNING

ADULT SUPERVISION REQUIRED. MISUSE OR CARELESS USE MAY
CAUSE SERIOUS INJURY, ESPECIALLY TO THE EYE. EYE PROTECTION
MUST BE USED BY THE USER AND ANY PERSON WITHIN RANGE. MAY
BE DANGEROUS UP TO 100 FEET. READ OWNER'S MANUAL BEFORE
USING. RECOMMENDED FOR USERS 9 YEARS OR OLDER.

850040523133
g MELEH04y T HLIUY

Designed in Austin, assembled in China. SKU: SFBOO1

“GelFire STARFIRE” packaging (red callout box added)

i. Gel Blaster, Inc. (f/k/a “Gel Blaster LLC”)
50.  On information and belief, Gel Blaster, Inc. imports and sells within the United
States after importation Gel Blaster Accused Products. For example, importation records show
that Gel Blaster, Inc. is the recipient of shipments of Gel Blaster Accused Products into the United

States from foreign entities. Exhibit 33 (Datamyne records for “Gel Blaster”) (showing “Gel

Blaster” and Gel Blaster, Inc.’s former corporate entity name “Gel Blaster LLC” as recipient of

15




shipments of “Gel Blaster Toy,” “Gel Blaster Toy Gun,” and “Gel Blaster Surge” from foreign
entities in 2021 and 2022).*

51. Further, Gel Blaster, Inc.’s website shows that it offers Gel Blaster Accused
Products for sale within the United States, depicted below. On information and belief, Gel Blaster,
Inc. also lists its products for sale on Amazon.com. Exhibit 34 (Gel Blaster Surge on

Amazon.com).

A &)  https;//gelblaster.com/products/gel-blaster-surge-x fé A Q4 18 0 a3

FREE SHIPPING ON ORDERS OVER $100

EL GELBLASTER GELLETS ACCESSORIES FAQ CART @

BLASTER,

GEL BLASTER SURGE

177 Reviews
$59.00

ee payments of $19.33 with Klarna. No fees. Learn more

Experience the Surge and blast our revolutionary water based Gellets™.
Rechargeable, mess-free, non-toxic, and safe for kids!

« Eco-friendly Gellets™

* No mess, dissolves instantly after impact

e All natural, non-toxic, non-irritating Gellets™

* Gellets™ expand in water for easy storage

QUANTITY:
On &2 ...14x
e 5y L s
$11210 $212.40

EVERY GEL BLASTER PURCHASE INCLUDES:
10,000 Gellets™, Low-Velocity Barrel, Barrel Removal Tool, USB-C
Charging Cable, Safety Glasses, and Instructions.

ADD TO CART

4 On information and belief, the Gel Blaster Accused Products are the only “Gel Blaster” Toys or
Toy Guns imported into the United States. For example, Gel Blaster Inc.’s website
(https://gelblaster.com/) lists only the Gel Blaster SURGE and Gel Blaster STARFIRE products,
along with related “GELLET” ammunition and accessories. See Exhibit 64.
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https://gelblaster.com/

)] (3 https://gelblaster.com/products/gel-blaster-starfire ® AN N 2 7 0 e @
FREE SHIPPING ON ORDERS OVER $100

i)
GEL BLASTER GELLETS ACCESSORIES FAQ

GEL BLASTER STARFIRE

1Review

$69.99
3 interest-free payments of $23.38 with Klarna. No fees. Lear more

Light up the night with Starfire by blasting glow in the dark, water-based
Gellets™! Select between full- or semi-auto for rechargeable, mess-free,
fun for kids of all ages!

* Blasts Eco-Safe, Glow in the Dark Gellets™

* LED Feedneck Instantly Activates Glow

o Quick Charge via USB-C

* Glow Activator requires (2) AAA batteries [not included)

QUANTITY:

BEL o rarrine

EVERY STARFIRE BLASTER INCLUDES:

5,000+ Glow in the Dark Gellets™, Low-Velocity Barrel, Barrel
Removal Tool, USB-C Charging Cable, Safety Glasses, Bonus
Feedneck, Instructions

ADD TO CART

52. On information and belief, Gel Blaster Inc. also distributes and/or sells the Gel

Blaster Accused Products to other third parties, for sale to retail customers within the United States.
For example, Gel Blaster Accused Products are also available for purchase in the United States on
third-party websites and retailers such as Walmart. See Exhibit 35 (Gel Blaster Accused Products
on Walmart.com).

53.  On information and belief, Gel Blaster Inc. maintains significant inventory of the
Accused Products in the United States and/or conduct significant operations with respect to the
Accused Products in the United States.

ii.  Shenzhen Yi Jin Electronics Science (a/k/a “Shenzhen Yi Jin”
Electronics and/or “Yi Jin Electronics Science”)

54. On information and belief, Shenzhen Yi Jin Electronics Science is involved with

the manufacture, sale for importation, and/or importation of the Gel Blaster Accused Products.
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For example, importation records show that Shenzhen Yi Jin Electronics Science ships Gel Blaster
Accused Products into the United States. Exhibit 33 (Datamyne records for “Gel Blaster™) at rows
12-26 (showing shipments of “Gel Blaster Toy” from “Shenzhen Yi Jin Electronics,” “Shenzhen
Yi Jin Electronics Science,” and “Yi Jin Electronics Science” to “Gel Blaster” and Gel Blaster,
Inc.’s former corporate entity name “Gel Blaster LLC” in 2021 and 2022).°
iii. Guangdong Yu Lee Technology Corporation (a/k/a “Guangdong
Yu Lee Technology” and/or “Guang Dong Yu Lee Technology
Corporation”)

55.  Oninformation and belief, Guangdong Yu Lee Technology Corporation is involved
with the manufacture, sale for importation, and/or importation of the Gel Blaster Accused Products.
For example, importation records show that Guangdong Yu Lee Technology Corporation ships
Gel Blaster Accused Products into the United States. Exhibit 33 (Datamyne records for “Gel
Blaster”) at rows 8-10 (showing shipments of “Gel Blaster Toy” from “Guang Dong Yu Lee
Technology” and “Guang Dong Yu Lee Technology Corporation” to “Gel Blaster” in 2022).

iv. Yu Lee Company Ltd.

56.  Oninformation and belief, Yu Lee Company Ltd. is involved with the manufacture,
sale for importation, and/or importation of the Gel Blaster Accused Products. For example,
importation records show that Yu Lee Company Ltd. ships Gel Blaster Accused Products into the
United States. Exhibit 33 (Datamyne records for “Gel Blaster”) at rows 27-37 (showing shipments

of “Gel Blaster Toy” and “Gel Blaster Surge” from “Yu Lee Company Limited” to “Gel Blaster”

in 2022).5

® See n.4, supra.
® See n.4, supra.
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2. The Splat-R-Ball Respondents

57.  Complainants purchased representative samples of the Splat-R-Ball Respondents’
SplatRBall SRB1200 Full Auto Rechargeable Battery Powered Water Bead Gel Ball Blaster,
SplatRBall SRB400 Full and Semi Auto Electric Rechargeable Soft Water Bead Gel Ball Blaster
Kit, and SplatRBall SRB375M Full Auto Mini Water Bead Blaster Kit and additional ammunition
(collectively the “SplatRBall Accused Products™) in the United States via Walmart.com. Exhibits
39A-39D (Proof of purchase of SplatRBall products).

58.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(x), Exhibits 7E-7G & 8E-8G show a
series of photographs of the SplatRBall Accused Products in the course of charting how the
SplatRBall Accused Products infringe exemplary claims of the Asserted Patents.

59.  On information and belief, the SplatRBall Accused Products sold in the United
States are manufactured in China and imported into the United States. For example, the packaging
for each of the SplatRBall Accused Products that Complainants purchased in the United States is

marked “Made in China” as shown below:

v 950003

Wi~ | W\\\\\\\

www. splatrball com 8 095 76003 7
Part No. 301089-000

SRB1200 packaging (red callout box added)

Sl

N R 950001
'“4;_‘;.; ]

Rogers, Arkansas 72756 US.A. II |I|‘

1936760
www.splatrball.com 4
PartNo.301064-00 *Rev.4/21 [ Made in Chma |

I,.\

SRB400 packaging (red callout box added)
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SPUAT()BALLY

L\

950005

I

N

\0

SRB375M packaging (red callout box added)

|

Rogers, Arkansas 72756 U.S.A. s 15009517600
www.splatrball.com -
Part No. 301087-000 'Made in'China

i. Splat-R-Ball, LLC

60.  On information and belief, Splat-R-Ball, LLC imports and sells within the United
States after importation SplatRBall Accused Products. For example, importation records show
that Splat-R-Ball is the recipient of shipments of SplatRBall Accused Products into the United
States from foreign entities. Compare Exhibit 36 (Datamyne records for “Splat-R-Ball”) at rows
272-281 (showing “Splat-R-Ball, LLC” as recipient of shipments of item numbers 950003 and
950001 from foreign entities in 2022), with Exhibits 30 and 31 (Splat-R-Ball website identifying
item numbers 950003 and 950001 as item numbers for SplatRBall Accused Products).

61. Further, Splat-R-Ball, LLC’s website shows that it offers SplatRBall Accused

Products for sale within the United States, including “available at Walmart.com” as depicted below:
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X @ ) https;//splatrball.com/product/srb400-full-semi-auto-soft-water-bead-blaster, AN a Y8

- o
% ,
SPLRT@BHL SRB400-SUB  SRB400-SUB XL SRB1200  AMMO & ACCESSORIE

SRB400 KIT

SRB400 KIT

FULL AND SEMI AUTO SOFT WATER BEAD BLASTER

Available at Walmart.com. SplatRBall everything
in your path at up to 8 SplatRBalls per second with
SplatRBall® Water Bead Blaster. Its easy-load
magazine holds 400 soft water beads.

This KIT includes:

— Water bead blaster

- 5,000 rounds of Splatrball ammunition
-~ Safety glasses

— SplatRBall hydrator

62.  On information and belief, Splat-R-Ball, LLC also distributes and/or sells the
SplatRBall Accused Products to other third parties, for sale to retail customers within the United
States. For example, SplatRBall Accused Products are also available for purchase from retailers
and third-party vendors such as Amazon.com, Walmart, Bass Pro Shops, Cabela’s and Big 5
Sporting Goods. Exhibit 38.

63.  On information and belief, Splat-R-Ball, LLC maintains significant inventory of
the Accused Products in the United States and/or conduct significant operations with respect to the
Accused Products in the United States.

ii.  Daisy Manufacturing Company (d/b/a “Daisy Outdoor Products”)

64.  On information and belief, Daisy Manufacturing Company (d/b/a “Daisy Outdoor
Products”) imports SplatRBall Accused Products and is involved with their sale after importation.
For example, importation records show that Daisy Outdoor Products is the recipient of shipments

of SplatRBall Accused Products into the United States from foreign entities. Compare Exhibit 36
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(Datamyne records for “Splat-R-Ball’) at rows 16-18, 263-271, 292-293, 294-296, 300, 302-303,
307-318, 321-328, 339, 343, 347-350, 352-354, 357-358, 361, 363-364, 371, 381, 383-386, 407-
408, 413, 415, 417-418, 427, 429-436, 440-441, 443, 448-449, 451-455, 458-471, 473-477, 479-
484, 488, 509-523, 526, 530, 533, 541, 544-553, 557-566, 579-580, 583-585, 587-595, 598-600,
602-603, 608-612, 631-639, 641, 650, 652-655, 657, 659-660, 663-673, 687, 798-806 (showing
“Daisy Outdoor Products” as recipient of shipments of items numbers 950003 and 950001 from
foreign entities from 2020 to 2022 with Exhibits 30 and 31 (Splat-R-Ball website identifying item
numbers 950003 and 950001 as item numbers for SplatRBall Accused Products).

65. In addition, public information indicates an affiliation between Daisy
Manufacturing Company and Splat-R-Ball, LLC with respect to the SplatRBall Accused Products.
For example, on information and belief, the customer service phone number (479-636-1200) listed
on the packaging of the SplatRBall Accused Products belongs to Daisy Outdoor Products, and is
listed as the “Main Office” phone number for Daisy Outdoor Products. Exhibit 29 (showing
“Contact Information” for Daisy at https://www.daisy.com/contact-us/).  Further, Daisy
Manufacturing Company’s address (1700 N 2nd St. Rogers, Arkansas, 72756) is, on information
and belief, to the same as that of Splat-R-Ball, LLC See Exhibit 17.

66.  On information and belief, Daisy Manufacturing Company maintains significant
inventory of the Accused Products in the United States and/or conduct significant operations with
respect to the Accused Products in the United States.

iii.  S-Beam Precision Products Ltd.

67.  On information and belief, S-Beam Precision Products Ltd. is involved with the

manufacture, sale for importation, and/or importation of the SplatRBall Accused Products. For

example, importation records show that S-Beam Precision Products Ltd. ships SplatRBall Accused
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Products into the United States. Compare Exhibit 36 (Datamyne records for “Splat-R-Ball”) at
rows 16-18, 262-281, 557-566, 686, (showing shipments of items numbers 950003 and 950001
from “S-Beam Precision Products Ltd.” or “S-Beam Precision Products Limited” from 2020 to
2022) with Exhibits 30 and 31 (Splat-R-Ball website identifying item numbers 950003 and 950001
as item numbers for SplatRBall Accused Products).

3. The PTT Respondents

68.  Complainants purchased representative samples of the PTT Respondents’ Hydro
Strike Pulsar Pro and Hydro Strike Nebula Pro and additional ammunition (collectively, the “PTT
Accused Products”) in the United States via Walmart.com. Exhibits 40A-40C (Proof of purchase
of PTT Accused Products).

69.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(x), Exhibits 7C-7D & 8C-8D shows a
series of photographs of the PTT Accused Products in the course of charting how the PTT Accused
Products infringe exemplary claims in the Asserted Patents.

70.  Oninformation and belief, the PTT Accused Products sold in the United States are
manufactured in China and imported into the United States. For example, the packaging for each
of the PTT Accused Products that Complainants purchased in the United States is marked “Made

in China” as depicted below:
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4|

PT-8812-1021

MADE IN CHINA

Ages 14+
Item No. 8812

MADE IN CHINA

Ages 14+
Item No. 8801

S —y | |
] “Hydro Strike Nebula Pro” packaging
(red callout box added to “Made in China”)

“Hydro Strike Pulsar Pro” packaging
(red callout box added to “Made in China”)

i. Prime Time Toys LLC

71.  On information and belief, Prime Time Toys LLC imports and sells within the
United States after importation PTT Accused Products. For example, importation data shows that
Prime Time Toys LLC is the recipient of shipments of PTT Accused Products into the United
States from foreign entities. See, e.g., Exhibit 37 (Datamyne records for “Prime Time Toys”) at
row 67 (showing “Prime Time Toys LLC” as recipient of shipments of “Hydro Strike Pulsar Pro”
from “Prime Time Toys Limited” in 2022).

72. On information and belief, Prime Time Toys LLC also distributes and/or sells the

PTT Accused Products to other third parties, for sale to retail customers within the United States.
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For example, PTT Accused Products are also available for purchase from retailers such as Walmart.
Exhibit 41 (PTT Accused Products on Amazon.com and Walmart.com).

73.  On information and belief, Prime Time Toys LLC maintains significant inventory
of the Accused Products in the United States and/or conduct significant operations with respect to
the Accused Products in the United States.

ii.  Prime Time Toys Ltd.

74.  Oninformation and belief, Prime Time Toys Ltd. is involved with the manufacture,
sale for importation, and/or importation of the PTT Accused Products. For example, importation
records show that Prime Time Toys Ltd. ships PTT Accused Products into the United States.
Exhibit 37 (Datamyne records for “Prime Time Toys”) at row 67 (showing shipments of “Hydro
Strike Pulsar Pro” from “Prime Time Toys Limited” in 2022). Further, the packaging for the PTT
Accused Products is labeled with “Prime Time Toys Ltds., Suite 5, 2/F Kwong Sang Hong Centre,

151-153 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.”

Emeax o g& SO

?at\\a«%‘e and Contents © 2021 Prime Time Toys Ltds., Suite 5, 2/F Kwong
Sang Wong Centre, 151-153 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.
vrime \\me internationai* is a registered trademark. US Keg. Irademark

WNos: 1,870,649. AWl Rights Reserved. Product Specifications including
gmdn(\ images on the package are subject to change without notice.
\ease keep this information for future reference.

Padkage and Contents ©2021 Prime Time Toys Ltds., Suite 5, 2/F Kwong Sang Hong
Centre, 151-153 Hoi Bun Road, KwunTong, Hong Kong. Prime Time Intemational® is
a regustered trademark. US Reg. Trademark Nos: 1,870,649. All Rights Reserved.
Product Spedfications induding product images on the package are subject to
change without notice. Please keep this information for future reference.

“Hydro Strike Pulsar Pro” packaging

(red callout box added) “Hydro Strike Nebula Pro” packaging
(red callout box added)

iii. Easebon Services Ltd.
75. On information and belief, Easebon Services Ltd. is also is involved with the

manufacture, sale for importation, and/or importation of the PTT Accused Products. For example,
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records of the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office identify Easebon Services Ltd. as the owner of
marks that appear on the packaging of each PTT Accused Product: “PRIME TIME
INTERNATIONAL” (U.S. Trademark Reg. No. 1,870,649) and the mark “HYDRO STRIKE”
(U.S. Trademark Ser. No. 90,848,352). See Exhibit 26 (PRIME TIME INTERNATIONAL

Trademark Record); Exhibit 25 (HYDRO STRIKE Trademark Record).

T

Package and Contents © 2021 Prime Time Toys Ltds., Suite 5, 2/F Kwon Vet 5 P )
Sana Hona Centre. 151-153 Hoi Bun Rnady Kwun Tona. Hona I(mmy ‘g ” a G l

Prime Time \nternational® is a registered trademark. US Reg. Trademark
,‘,9

WNos: 1,870,649. All Rights Reserved. Product Specifications including
roduct \mages on the package are subject to change without notice.
Package and Contents ©2021 Prime Time Toys Ltds., Suite 5, 2/F Kwong Sang Hong
Centre, 151-153 Hoi Bun Road, kwunTona. Hona Kona_ Prime Time Intamationat® ic

Customer Service E-mail
customercare@primetimetoys.com

\ease keep this information for future reference.
a“(eq“\s\e‘ed \@(\er_r\axki \US Req. Trademark Nos: 1,870,649. All Rights Reserved.

Tiuaa ’Jvc\-\u\u\\\u\) WIGUGING PrOGUCT Mages on the package are subject to
dhange without notice. Please keep this information for future reference.

“Hydro Strike Pulsar Pro” packaging

(red callout box added to zoomed image) . )
“Hydro Strike Nebula Pro” packaging

(red callout box added to zoomed image)

76. Further, on information and belief, Easebon Services, Ltd. has at least some
association with the website through which PTT Accused Products are marketed and sold. For
example, the footer for the website “http://hydrostrike.primetimetoys.com/shop” which is a
website that markets the PTT Accused Products states “© 2022 Prime Time International. All
Rights Reserved.” Exhibit 28 (Hydro Strike Website) at 4. As noted above, “Prime Time

International” is a registered trademark owned by Easebon Services Ltd.
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77.  Oninformation and belief, as owner of trademarks that appear on the PTT Accused
Products’ packaging as well as at least one of the marketing websites for the infringing product,
“http://hydrostrike.primetimetoys.com/shop,” Easebon Services Ltd. is involved in marketing and
selling the PTT Accused Products, and/or policing the market and making sure the PTT Accused
Products bearing its trademarks and imported into the United States are of a consistent quality. In
addition, public information indicates that Easebon Services Ltd. shares the same business address
as Prime Time Toys Ltd. (a company that ships PTT Accused Products into the United States), as
depicted in the TESS registration report shown above. See, e.g., Exhibit 27 (listing address for
Easebon Services, Ltd. as the same address identified in the above product packaging pictures
Prime Time Toys Ltd.).

VI. UNLAWFUL AND UNFAIR ACTS OF RESPONDENTS - PATENT
INFRINGEMENT

78.  On information and belief, each Respondent has engaged in unfair trade practices
through its involvement in importing, selling for importation, and/or selling after importation in
the United States, Accused Products that directly and/or indirectly infringe each Asserted Patent,
literally or under the doctrine of equivalents.

A. Direct Infringement

1. Infringement of the °282 Patent

79.  Oninformation and belief, each Respondent is involved with importing, selling for
importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States, Accused Products that directly
infringe the *282 Patent, literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, either as imported or when
assembled and/or used as directed.

80.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(viii), exemplary claim charts

comparing independent claim 1 of the ’282 Patent to the representative articles are attached as
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Exhibits 7A-7B (Gel Blaster Accused Products), Exhibits 7C-7D (PTT Accused Products), and
Exhibits 7E-7G (SplatRBall Accused Products).

81.  Oninformation and belief, Respondents themselves have directly infringed, at least
by using the Accused Products within the United States, for example, in connection with product
testing and/or creating photographs or videos of the Accused Products for promotional purposes.
See, e.g., Exhibit 42 (screenshots of Gel Blaster’s YouTube videos including the Pennybacker
Bridge near Austin, Texas and metadata indicating production in the United States, and Gel
Blaster’s website showing Gel Blaster Accused Products); Exhibit 43 (screenshots of Splat-R-
Ball’s YouTube videos with metadata indicating production in the United States, and website
showing SplatRBall Accused Products); Exhibit 44 (Prime Time Toys’ website showing PTT
Accused Products that are available for purchase in stores within the United States).

82.  Oninformation and belief, third parties (e.g., product reviewers and end users) have
directly infringed at least by using the Accused Products within the United States as directed by
user instructions and/or other literature included with the Accused Products. See Section VI.B
(identifying exemplary instances of direct infringement in describing Respondents’ indirect
infringement), infra.

2. Infringement of the *683 Patent

83.  Oninformation and belief, each Respondent is involved with importing, selling for
importation, and/or selling after importation into the United States, Accused Products that directly
infringe the *683 Patent, literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, either as imported or when
assembled and/or used as directed.

84. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(viii), exemplary claim charts

comparing independent claim 1 of the 683 Patent to the representative articles are attached as
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Exhibits 8A-8B (Gel Blaster Accused Products), Exhibits 8C-8D (PTT Accused Products), and
Exhibits 8E-8G (SplatRBall Accused Products).

85.  Oninformation and belief, Respondents themselves have directly infringed, at least
by using the Accused Products within the United States, for example, in connection with product
testing and/or creating photographs or videos of the Accused Products for promotional purposes.
See, e.g., Exhibit 42 (screenshots of Gel Blaster’s YouTube videos including the Pennybacker
Bridge near Austin Texas and metadata indicating production in the United States and Gel
Blaster’s website showing Gel Blaster Accused Products); Exhibit 43 (screenshots of Splat-R-
Ball’s YouTube videos with metadata indicating production in the United States and website
showing SplatRBall Accused Products); Exhibit 44 (Prime Time Toys’ website showing PTT
Accused Products that are available for purchase in stores within the United States).

86.  Oninformation and belief, third parties (e.g., product reviewers and end users) have
directly infringed at least by using the Accused Products within the United States as directed by
user instructions and/or other literature included with the Accused Products. See Section VI.B
(identifying exemplary instances of direct infringement in describing Respondents’ indirect
infringement), infra.

B. Indirect Infringement

1. The Gel Blaster Respondents

87.  On information and belief, the Gel Blaster Respondents contribute to and induce
direct infringement by others, including their customers, such as retailers and end users under 35
U.S.C. § 271(b)-(c) without license or authority. The Gel Blaster Respondents induce and
contribute to customers’ directly infringing acts, including those customers’ sales, use, and offers
for sale of articles that are covered by the Asserted Patents. For example, on information and

belief, retailers such as Target and Walmart, offer Gel Blaster Accused Products (including the
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Gel Blaster Surge and Gel Blaster Starfire) for sale in retail stores in the United States and on
websites accessible from within the United States. Exhibits 34, 35. Further, end users assemble
and use the Gel Blaster Accused Products in the United States, according to the included product

instructions, as shown in publicly-available videos:

What's In The Box?! GEL BLASTER SURGE 2.0 Unboxing and Initial Review | GB Splatrball Hydro Strike

5130 GUDISUKE /) SHARE 4

L P S SAVE ..
@ Eloadie SUBSCRIBE

Exhibit 45 (Screenshots of a YouTube Channel Unboxing Gel Blaster Surge available at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-5YPKIQY80s). Metadata for this video indicates it was
created in Atlanta, Georgia, and the metadata for the YouTube channel indicates the poster is based

in the United States. Id.

30



> Pl 4 220880

What's In The Box?! GEL BLASTER SURGE 2.0 Unboxing and Initial Review | GB Splatrball Hydro Strike

5 130 GJ DISLIKE ) SHARE | DOWNLOAD 3 CLIP =+ SAVE ...

@ Engineerable SUBSCRIBE

Id. (Screenshots of a YouTube Channel Unboxing Gel Blaster Surge available at

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-5YPKkIQY80s at 2:29).

Exhibit 46 (Screenshots of a YouTube Channel Reviewing the Gel Blaster Surge available at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4uDrQolVFgE). On information and belief, videos from this

channel are made in United States. See, e.g.,
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https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xvWieAO8A54&t=324s (showing same reviewer at Fiery
Crab Seafood Restaurant & Bar, which has locations in Louisiana and South Carolina).

88.  On information and belief, the Gel Blaster Respondents had, and have, knowledge
of the Asserted Patents. For example, the Gel Blaster Respondents have knowledge of the Asserted
Patents and their infringement thereof as a result of the filing and/or service of this Complaint.
Additionally, before the filing of this Complaint, the Gel Blaster Respondents had actual
knowledge of the Asserted Patents and their infringement thereof by way of pre-suit notice letters.
Exhibits 47A-47E (Pre-suit Letters to the Gel Blaster Respondents).

89.  On information and belief, the Gel Blaster Respondents have knowingly induced
and continue to knowingly induce directly infringing acts by others with specific intent to
encourage infringement. For example, the Gel Blaster Respondents actively induce customers’
and/or end users’ direct infringement by contracting with and/or encouraging customers and/or
end users to use, offer to sell, sell, and import in the United States products that infringe the
Asserted Patents. The Gel Blaster Respondents know, or should have known, that these induced
acts directly infringe the Asserted Patents because of, for example, the infringement allegations
and evidence provided in connection with this Complaint, and notice letters to the Gel Blaster
Respondents.

90. The Gel Blaster Respondents also contribute to the foregoing infringement by
customers and/or end users by offering to sell, selling, and importing in the United States the
Accused Products that constitute a material part of the articles that practice the Asserted Patents.
The Accused Products have no substantial non-infringing uses, are a material part of the invention

of each Asserted Patents, are especially made or especially adapted for use in an infringement of
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such patent, and not a staple article or commodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-
infringing use.

91. Furthermore, the Gel Blaster Respondents have actively induced and contributed
to, and continue to actively induce and contribute to, the infringement of consumers and/or end
users by creating and distributing technical, marketing, sales and product literature for the Accused
Products, including materials that instruct customers and/or end users to assemble and use the
Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes. For example, as shown in the exemplary
product literature below, the Gel Blaster Respondents instruct users to submerge Gellets in water
for at least two hours, fill a hopper with hydrated Gellets, then screw the hopper onto the top rail

of the Accused Products:

STEP 1- HYDRATE YOUR GELLETS™ !l IMPORTANT !l A e

Gellets™ must be sgbmergeq in water for at least two hours to fully expand to size. They also need to have plenty of e S
water to absorb (this is very important) - you'll know there was plenty of water if after 2 hours the Gellets are stil

- m

submerged in the water. Failing to completely hydrate Gellets will cause your Gel Blaster® to seem crappy. g

Note: Make sure that the Gellets are prepared in an adequate sized container. Gellets will expand v
GELLETS \vqf ®

10 times rr'veir original size. Store hydrated Gellets away from the elements and direct sunlight.
Gellets last indefinitely when dehydrated and up to three months when submerged in water. HYDRATION

VIDEO

STEP 2 - CHARGE YOUR BLASTER i %2 houRs
The Charging LED light (on the bottom) will show solid red when charging, when fully STATUS LIGHTS HOPPER INSTALL

charged, the light will turn green. While in use, the light will flash red on the side and the BATTERY
bottom of the blaster to indicate a low battery. INDICATORS
#O

STEP 3 - FILL YOUR HOPPER

Fill your hopper with hydrated Gellets, make sure all water Is drained from the hopper L7
before installing on your blaster. =

USB-C CHARGING PORT

STEP 4 - INSTALL HOPPER ONTO BLASTER
Screw the hopper into the feedneck. Then slide the feedneck onto the top rail of the SURGE  RemovE

with the arrow pointing forward. sl L -
IMPORTANT - Make sure you slide the feedneck all the way forward until you feel —FINS
and hear a “click”. Failing to do so will cause your Gel Blaster SURGE to misfire. NOTCH
_ SIDE UP
STEP 5 - OPTIONAL: INTERCHANGEABLE BARRELS ) B
Your Gel Blaster currently comes with the Standard Barrel pre-installed (175fps). To remove TIP

the barrel, use the Barrel Tool provided to unscrew the barrel. You can then install your
orange Reduced Velocity Barrel (100fps) for a lighter blasting experience.

Exhibit 65 (Manual for Gel Blaster Surge Product); see also Exhibit 66 (Manual for Gel Blaster

Starfire Product) (similar instructions).
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92. Moreover, on information and belief, the Gel Blaster Respondents have provided
Accused Products to end users in the United States for promotion and advertising. See, e.g.,
Exhibit 46 (Screenshots of a YouTube Channel Reviewing the Gel Blaster Surge available at
(https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4uDrQolVFqE) at 3:32-3:41).

93. In addition, on information and belief, the Gel Blaster Respondents contributorily
infringe certain of the Asserted Claims through their sale and offers to sell within the United States
and/or importation into the United States components, such as spare parts (including and not
limited to “fins,” “tips,” “hoppers,” “feednecks,” and “Gellets”) of the Accused Products, that
constitute a material part of the asserted claims, knowing the same to be especially made or
especially adapted for use in an infringement of the Asserted Patents, and not a staple article or
commodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use. Exhibits 63, 64. Due to the
specific designs of the Accused Products, components thereof such as spare parts do not have any
substantial non-infringing uses.

2. The Splat-R-Ball Respondents

94.  On information and belief, the Splat-R-Ball Respondents contribute to and induce
direct infringement by others, including their customers, such as retailers and end users under 35
U.S.C. § 271(b)-(c) without license or authority. The Splat-R-Ball Respondents induce and
contribute to customers’ directly infringing acts, including those customers’ sales, use, and offers
for sale of articles that are covered by the Asserted Patents. For example, on information and
belief, retailers such as Bass Pro Shops, Cabela’s, Big 5 Sporting Goods, offer SplatRBall Accused
Products (including the SplatRBall SRB1200 Full Auto Rechargeable Battery Powered Water
Bead Gel Ball Blaster, SplatRBall Full and Semi Auto Electric Rechargeable Soft Water Bead Gel
Ball Blaster, and SplatRBall Full Auto 375 Mini Water Bead Blaster) for sale in retail stores in the

United States and on websites accessible from within the United States. Exhibit 38 (Screenshots
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of Retailer Websites offering Splat-R-Ball Products for sale). Further, end users assemble and use
SplatRBall Accused Products in the United States as shown in publicly-available videos including

from the SplatRBall Respondents:

P M % ooom

SplatRBall SRB1200

5 33 OGP DISLKE ) SHARE L
$ R SUBSCRIBE

Exhibit 48 (Screenshots of videos on YouTube showing Splat-R-Ball Accused Products available
at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=cmpgH9qgwY _0). Metadata for this video indicates it was

made within the United States. Id.
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Exhibit 49 (Screenshots of a YouTube Reviewing Splat-R-Ball Accused Products available at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=hofyg6 AuKhw). Metadata for this video indicates it was

made in the United States. Id.

P Pl o e3/73

NEW & IMPROVED SPLATRBALL GUN SRB1200 | UNBOXING & TEST FIRE

289 LV DISLIKE ) SHARE L DOWNLOAD () THANKS 3¢ CLIP =4 SAVE ...

#%% BamyDaCEO'S Nation

SUBSCRIBE

Exhibit 50 (Screenshots of a YouTube Reviewing Splat-R-Ball Accused Products available at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=njAlvdgdlLl). On information and belief, videos from this

channel are made in the United States. See, e.g.,
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https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xvWieAO8A54&t=324s (showing same reviewer at Fiery
Crab Seafood Restaurant & Bar, which has locations in Louisiana and South Carolina).

95.  On information and belief, the SplatRBall Respondents had, and have, knowledge
of the Asserted Patents. For example, the SplatRBall Respondents have knowledge of the Asserted
Patents and their infringement thereof as a result of the filing and/or service of this Complaint.
Additionally, before the filing of this Complaint, the SplatRBall Respondents had actual
knowledge of the Asserted Patents and their infringement thereof by way of pre-suit notice letters.
Exhibits 51A-51D (Pre-suit Letters to the SplatRBall Respondents).

96.  On information and belief, the SplatRBall Respondents have knowingly induced
and continue to knowingly induce direct infringing acts by others with specific intent to encourage
infringement. For example, the SplatRBall Respondents actively induce customers’ and/or end
users’ direct infringement by contracting with and/or encouraging customers and/or end users to
offer to sell, sell, and import in the United States products that infringe the Asserted Patents. The
SplatRBall Respondents know, or should have known, that these induced acts directly infringe the
Asserted Patents because of, for example, the infringement allegations and evidence provided in
connection with this Complaint, and notice letters to the SplatRBall Respondents.

97.  The SplatRBall Respondents also contribute to the foregoing infringement by
customers and/or end users by offering to sell, selling, and importing in the United States the
Accused Products that constitute a material part of the articles that practice the Asserted Patents.
The Accused Products have no substantial non-infringing uses, are a material part of the invention
of each Asserted Patents, are especially made or especially adapted for use in an infringement of
such patent, and not a staple article or commodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-

infringing use.
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98. Furthermore, the SplatRBall Respondents have actively induced and contributed to,
and continue to actively induce and contribute to, the infringement of consumers and/or end users
by creating and distributing technical, marketing, sales and product literature for the Accused
Products, including materials that instruct customers and/or end users to assemble and use the
Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes. For example, as shown in the exemplary
product literature below, the SplatRBall Respondents instruct users to “[u]se Certified SPLAT-R-
BALL™ ammo only” and also teach users how to incorporate that hydrated ammo into the blaster

using the magazine:

HOW TO HYDRATE SPLAT-R-BALL™ AMMO

1. Use Certified SPLAT-R-BALL™ ammo only.
2. To hydrate properly, pour ammo into a bucket-like container and add water to cover. Soak for 4 hours. Correct

ratio add 1/2 teaspoon dry ammo to 8 ounces of water, or simply add one 500-count pack of dehydrated Splat-R
Ball™ ammo to the ammo bottle (induded) and fill with water to the neck. Too little water will result in small
ammo that will not function properly. e ———

3. Drain all excess water before loading magazine. :

4. To hydrate large quantities of SPLAT-R-BALL™ ammo, use a
5-gallon bucket or similar large container.

**k*k
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HOW TO OPERATE

1. Toload ammo into SPLAT-R-BALL™ magazine, open magazine
loading door and pour in ammo. Make sure all excess water has
been removed before filling the magazine. Do not overfill.

2. When magazine is filled, close magazine loading door and insert
magazine into bottom of Splat-R-Ball™. You should hear a click
when magazine is fully seated.

3. Using the Selector Switch on side of gun, select shooting option
you prefer — OFF (X), SEMI (0) and FULL-AUTO (000). Always keep
the Switch set to“OFF” (X) until ready to shoot. The SEMI setting
(0) sends one SPLAT-R-BALL™ downrange each time the trigger is
pulled. The FULL-AUTO setting (000) will continually send
Splat-R-Balls™ downrange as long as the trigger is pulled.

4. After making certain of your target and what is beyond it, place
finger on trigger, aim in a safe direction and depress trigger to
shoot, Always wear eye protection when shooting or

observing. p——Y | /

Exhibit 52 (Manual for the SplatRBall SRB1200); see also similar language in Exhibit 53 (Manual
for the SplatRBall SRB400); Exhibit 54 (Manual for the SplatRBall SRB375M).

99. In addition, on information and belief, the SplatRBall Respondents contributorily
infringe certain of the Asserted Claims through their sale and offers to sell within the United States
and/or importation into the United States components, such as spare parts (including and not
limited to “certified water bead Splat-R-Ball ammo,” “water blaster drum magazine 800 round,”
“water blaster rechargeable battery,” “water blaster magazine 400 round,” “water blaster stock,”
“water blaster activated targets,” and “water bead blaster sling”) of the Accused Products, that
constitute a material part of the asserted claims, knowing the same to be especially made or
especially adapted for use in an infringement of the Asserted Patents, and not a staple article or
commaodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use. Exhibit 67. Due to the

specific designs of the Accused Products, components thereof such as spare parts do not have any

substantial non-infringing uses.
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3. The PTT Respondents

100. On information and belief, the PTT Respondents contribute to and induce direct
infringement by others, including their customers, such as retailers and end-users under 35 U.S.C.
8 271(b)-(c) without license or authority. The PTT Respondents induce and contribute to
customers’ directly infringing acts, including those customers’ sales, use, and offers for sale of
articles that are covered by the Asserted Patents. For example, on information and belief, retailers
offer PTT Accused Products (including the Hydro Strike Pulsar Pro and Hydro Strike Nebula Pro
Water Bead Blaster) for sale in retail stores in the United States and on websites accessible from
within the United States. See Exhibit 55 (showing pricing information and directions as to how to
purchase PTT Accused Products at https://hydrostrike.primetimetoys.com/shop and
https://hydrostrikegelblasters.com/shop). Further, end users assemble and use the PTT Accused

Products in the United States as shown in publicly-available videos:
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Play (k)

P Pl o 65871009
Exhibit 56 (Screenshots of a YouTube Reviewing Hydro Strike Pulsar Pro available at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=YjmD9wgK5ew). Metadata for this video indicates it was

made in the United States. Id.

Exhibit 57 (Screenshots of a YouTube Reviewing PTT Accused Products available at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qld-iGEuf7c). Metadata for this video indicates it was made

in the United States. Id.
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> om Y EON I

DART ZONE IS MAKING PRO GEL BLASTERS NOW?!?!?
J DISLIKE 2> SHARE L DOWNLOAD (&) THANKS S¢ CLIP =+ SAVE

o ical ©
.1“ LordDraconical & SUBSCRIBE

Id. at 6:56.

LordDraconical

HOME VIDEOS PLAYLISTS C UNITY CHANNELS

Description

1 am Drac, the one and only nerf vampire. Subscribe for nerf gun videos, nerf mods, nerf battle’s, 3d printed nerf mods and guns,
top 5 nerf gun reviews, nerf fights and even custom nerf guns from games like Fortnite and Destiny!
If you have a product you would like reviewed or fanmail you'd like me to read:

Drac Thalassa

4426 Hugh Howell Rd.
Ste. B192

Tucker, GA 30084

Exhibit 58 (Screenshot of YouTube Channel Location in the United States available at

https://www.youtube.com/c/LordDraconical/about)
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Play (k)

» Pl 4 /230/1008

Exhibit 59 (Screenshots of a YouTube Reviewing PTT Accused Products available at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=nGIKG9iQwgU). On information and belief, videos from
this channel are made in United States. See, e.g.,
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xvWieAO8A54&t=324s (showing same reviewer at Fiery
Crab Seafood Restaurant & Bar, which has locations in Louisiana and South Carolina).

101. On information and belief, the PTT Respondents had, and have, knowledge of the
Asserted Patents. For example, the PTT Respondents have knowledge of the Asserted Patents and
their infringement thereof as a result of the filing and/or service of this Complaint. Additionally,
before the filing of this Complaint, the PTT Respondents had actual knowledge of the Asserted
Patents and their infringement thereof by way of pre-suit notice letters. Exhibits 60A-60C (Pre-
suit Letters to the PTT Respondents).

102. On information and belief, the PTT Respondents have knowingly induced and
continue to knowingly induce directly infringing acts by others with specific intent to encourage
infringement. For example, the PTT Respondents actively induce customers’ and/or end users’

direct infringement by contracting with and/or encouraging customers and/or end users to offer to
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sell, sell, use, and import in the United States products that infringe the Asserted Patents. The PTT
Respondents know, or should have known, that these induced acts directly infringe the Asserted
Patents because of, for example, the infringement allegations and evidence provided in connection
with this Complaint, and notice letters to the PTT Respondents.

103. The PTT Respondents also contributes to the foregoing infringement by customers
and/or end users by offering to sell, selling, and importing in the United States the Accused
Products that constitute a material part of the articles that practice the Asserted Patents. The
Accused Products have no substantial non-infringing uses, are a material part of the invention of
each Asserted Patents, are especially made or especially adapted for use in an infringement of such
patent, and not a staple article or commodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing
use.

104. Furthermore, the PTT Respondents have actively induced and contributed to, and
continue to actively induce and contribute to, the infringement of consumers and/or end users by
creating and distributing technical, marketing, sales and product literature for the Accused
Products, including materials that instruct customers and/or end users to assemble and use the
Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes. For example, product literature distributed
with the Hydro Strike Pulsar Pro teaches end-users to hydrate the beads for use within the device
including the steps of hydrating Gel-Tek bead rounds in a hydration/storage container for four

hours then inserting the rounds in the blaster.

44



Your Gel-Tek Beads
kets of dehydrated Gel-Tek
Beads.

Exhibit 61 (Manual for the Hydro Strike Pulsar Pro); see also Exhibit 62 (Manual for the Hydro
Strike Nebula Pro).

105. Inaddition, on information and belief, the PTT Respondents contributorily infringe
certain of the Asserted Claims through their sale and offers to sell within the United States and/or
importation into the United States components, such as spare parts (including and not limited to
the “Hydro Strike Pulsar Pro Rechargeable Battery Pack Refill,” the “Hydro Strike Pulsar Pro Gel
Water Bead Gel-Tek Cartridge Refill,” and the “Hydro Strike Gel-Tek Gel Beads Refill Pack”),
of the Accused Products, that constitute a material part of the asserted claims, knowing the same
to be especially made or especially adapted for use in an infringement of the Asserted Patents, and
not a staple article or commodity of commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing use. See,
e.g., Exhibit 55. Due to the specific designs of the Accused Products, components thereof such as
spare parts do not have any substantial non-infringing uses.

VIl. HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE ITEM NUMBERS

106. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(3), the Accused Products are believed to

fall within at least the following classifications of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United
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States: 9304.00.0000, 9503.00.0073 and 9503.00.0090. These HTS numbers are intended for
illustration only and are not intended to be restrictive of the category of Accused Products.

VIll. RELATED LITIGATION

107.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(5), the Asserted Patents and the subject
matter of this Complaint are not, nor have they been, the subject of any court or agency litigation.

IX. DOMESTIC INDUSTRY

108. As required by Section 337(a)(2) and defined by Section 337(a)(3), a domestic
industry exists and/or is in the process of being established in the United States in connection with
articles protected by the Asserted Patents.

A. Technical Prong

109. Claim charts demonstrating how Hasbro’s representative products (the “Domestic
Industry Products™) are covered by an exemplary claim of each of the Asserted Patents are attached
as Confidential Exhibits 9A-10B. As shown in these claim charts, the Domestic Industry Products
are protected by the Asserted Patents.

B. Economic Prong

110.  Adomestic industry, under subparts (A), (B), and/or (C) of Section 337(a)(3), exists
by virtue of Complainants’ significant U.S. investment in plant and equipment, significant
employment of U.S. labor and capital, and substantial investment in U.S. exploitation of the
Asserted Patents, including through engineering, research and development, and other activities
designed to exploit the patented technology.

111. For example, Complainant Hasbro has developed and is in the process of
developing a NERF Pro GelFire blaster designed to launch spherical projectiles made of a hydrated
superabsorbent polymer (“SAP”’) material, which practices the Asserted Patents. Exemplary U.S.

investments are discussed in more detail in the Confidential Declaration of Adam Kleinman,
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Senior Vice President at Hasbro, Inc. See Confidential Exhibit 6 (Kleinman Decl.). For example,

Hasbro has undertaken efforts to develop a NERF Pro GelFire blaster that practices the Asserted

Patents from its headquarters in Pawtucket, Rhode Island, where [
have conducted activity related to |
I O

112. |
I s caolled the NERF Pro GelFire Mythic Blaster. 1d. [N
I N
e

I
113. The NERF Pro GelFire Mythic Blaster became available for presale from Hasbro

Pulse and major retailers including Amazon and Target in July 2022. Id. GG

N, H'2sbro
plans for the NERF Pro GelFire Mythic Blaster to be available on shelves by November 2022. Id.

In the course of the foregoing development efforts, Hasbro has made and continues to make
significant U.S. investments in plant and equipment; significant employment of U.S. labor and

capital; and/or substantial investment in U.S. exploitation of the Asserted Patents, including
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through engineering, research and development, and other activities designed to exploit the
patented technology. See Confidential Exhibit 6 (Kleinman Decl.).

114. Totheextent it is determined that a domestic industry does not yet exist with respect
to the Asserted Patents, a domestic industry is in the process of being established pursuant to
Section 337(a)(2). As noted above, Hasbro has taken tangible steps to establish an industry in the
United States, and there is a significant likelihood that the industry requirement will be satisfied
in the future, as discussed in more detail in the Confidential Declarations of Mr. Kleinman. See
Confidential Exhibit 6 (Kleinman Decl.). Preorders of the NERF Pro GelFire Mythic Blaster

began in July 2022 through Hasbro Pulse, Target, and Amazon. Id. Hasbro expects for the

products to be available on shelves by November 2022. 1d.
e

I (.
X. LICENSEES

115. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(iii), Complainants state that Hasbro,
Inc. is the only licensee of each involved U.S. patent.
XI. REQUESTED EXCLUSION ORDERS

A. Limited Exclusion Order

116. Pursuant to Section 337(d), Complainants respectfully request that a limited
exclusion order be entered barring from entry into the United States all soft projectile launching
devices, components thereof, ammunition, and products containing same, that infringe one or more
of the Asserted Claims of the Asserted Patents to remedy the Respondents’ violation of Section

337 and to prevent such future violations by Respondents.

48



B. Cease and Desist Orders

117. Cease and desist orders against all named Respondents are appropriate under
Section 337(f), which provides that the Commission may issue a cease and desist order against
any person violating Section 337 in addition to exclusion orders issued under Section 337(d).
Cease and desist orders are appropriate to remedy and prevent the violation of Complainants’
patent rights due to Respondents’ commercially significant inventory of soft projectile launching
devices, components thereof, ammunition, and products containing same, as well as their
significant domestic operations relating to the same.

XIl. RELIEF REQUESTED

118. WHEREFORE, by reason of the foregoing, Complainants respectfully request that

the United States International Trade Commission:

a. Institute an immediate investigation, pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(1)(B)(i) and (b)(1), with respect to violation of
Section 337 by Respondents based upon their sale for importation, importation, and/or sale after
importation into the United States of soft projectile launching devices, components thereof,
ammunition, and products containing same that infringe one or more of the Asserted Claims of
the Asserted Patents.

b. Schedule and conduct a hearing on said unlawful acts and, following said
hearing, determine that there has been a violation of 19 U.S.C. § 1337;

C. Issue permanent limited exclusion orders, pursuant to 19 U.S.C.
8§ 1337(d)(1), barring from entry into the United States all soft projectile launching devices,
components thereof, ammunition, and products containing same, that infringe one or more of the

Asserted Claims of the Asserted Patents.
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d. Issue permanent cease and desist orders, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(f),
directing Respondents, and others acting on their behalf, to cease and desist from selling for
importation into the United States, importing, selling after importation into the United States,
offering for sale, marketing, advertising, demonstrating, sampling, warehousing inventory for
distribution, selling, distributing, licensing, testing, providing technical support, use, or other
related commercial activity involving imported products that infringe one or more of the
Asserted Claims of the Asserted Patents; and

e. Impose a bond, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j), upon importation of any
Accused Products during any presidential review;

f. Grant such other and further relief as the Commission deems just and

proper based on the facts determined by the investigation and the authority of the Commission.
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Respectfully submitted,

FISH & RICHARDSON P.C.

Dated: July 20, 2022 By: /s/ Brian P_Boyd

Ruffin B. Cordell
rbc@fr.com

Jack R. Wilson
jwilson@fr.com

FISH & RICHARDSON P.C.
1000 Maine Ave SW
Washington, D.C. 20024
Phone: (202) 783-5070

Brian P. Boyd

bboyd@fr.com

FISH & RICHARDSON P.C.
1180 Peachtree St. NE, 21st Floor
Atlanta, GA 30309

Phone: (404) 892-5005

Fax: (404) 892-5002

Jeffrey Shneidman
Shneidman@fr.com

Qiuyi Wu

gwu@fr.com

FISH & RICHARDSON P.C.
One Marina Park Drive
Boston, MA 02210-1878
Phone: (617) 542-5070

COUNSEL FOR COMPLAINANT
HASBRO, INC.

Megan J. Redmond
megan.redmond@eriselP.com
Adam P. Seitz
adam.seitz@eriselP.com
Carrie A. Bader
carrie.bader@eriselP.com
Tyler Knox
tyler.knox@eriseip.com
ERISE IP

7015 College Blvd., Ste. 700
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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of

CERTAIN SOFT PROJECTILE
LAUNCHING DEVICES, COMPONENTS Inv. No. 337-TA-_____
THEREOF, AMMUNITION, AND

PRODUCTS CONTAINING SAME

VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT

I, Adam Kleinman, declare in accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.4 and 210.12(a)(1) that
the following statements are true:

1. I am currently the Senior Vice President & General Manager, NERF & Sports
Action at Hasbro, Inc. and I am duly authorized to verify this Complaint of Hasbro, Inc., and
Spin Master, Inc. Under Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 (“Complaint”);

2. I have read the foregoing Complaint and am aware of its contents;

3. To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, formed after inquiry
reasonable under the circumstances, the claims and other legal contentions in this Complaint are
warranted by existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument for the extension, modification, or
reversal of existing law or the establishment of new law;

4, To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, formed after inquiry
reasonable under the circumstances, the allegations and other factual contentions in the
Complaint have evidentiary support or, if specifically so identified, are likely to have evidentiary
support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery;

5. The Complaint is not being presented for any improper purpose, such as to harass
or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of the investigation or related

proceeding.



I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregoing is

true and correct.

Executed this 2> day of July, 2022. U -
/

A/dz\rﬁ, Kleinman

Pawtucket, Rhode Island





